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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

ORLANDO DIVISION
AUTOMATED PACKAGING
TECHNOLOGIES, LLC,
Plaintiff,
VS. CASE NO. 6:01-cv-494-Orl-28-DAB
TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY, JURY TRIAL DEMANDED .5 =
a partnership, and S
TAMANET (U.S.A), INC,, oL |
a Delaware corporation :: w
— G
Defendants. gg;- iy
/ e 2
AMENDED COMPLAINT -

Plaintiff, AUTOMATED PACKAGING TECHNOLOGIES, LLC (“AUTOMATED?")
hereby sues Defendants, TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY, a partnership organized according
to the laws of the State of Israel (“TAMA”), and TAMANET (U.S.A.), INC. (“TAMANET"),

a Delaware corporation, and alleges:

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION

1. This is a civil action for a declaratory judgment and permanent injunctive
relief relating to United States Patent 5,256,353 (“the ‘353 Patent”).

2. Plaintiff AUTOMATED is, and at all times material to this action has been, a
limited liability company formed and organized under the laws of the State of Florida,
having its principal offices in Seminole County, Florida.

3. Defendant TAMA is, on information and belief, a partnership organized

according to the laws of the State of Israel. Defendant has executive offices in Israel at
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Kibbutzmishmar Ha’emek, 19236 Israel, together with U.S. offices in various locations
under the auspices of TAMANET (U.S.A)), INC.

4. Defendant TAMANET (U.S.A.), INC,, is on information and belief, a
corporation formed and organized under the laws of the State of Delaware whose principal
place of business is located in Fullerton, California (hereinafter called “TAMANET").

5. TAMANET is the exclusive United States agent for Defendant TAMA, and
takes orders for TAMA products, arranges for their import into the United States, and
distributes such products to purchasers throughout the United States.

6. Plaintiff alleges, on information and belief, that TAMA controls the activities
and affairs of TAMANET.

7. TAMANET distributes TAMA products on behalf of both Defendants to
customers in Florida and in the Middle District of Fiorida, and attends trade shows within
the Middle District of Florida to promote TAMA products in competition with Plaintiff.

8. TAMANET purports to be the only United States representative of TAMA
licensed to sell products made in accordance with the ‘353 Patent.

9. TAMANET distributes TAMA products allegedly made in accordance with the
‘353 Patent throughout the United States, including the State of Florida.

10.  Forreasons more particularly stated hereinafter, Defendants purposely direct
their activities at residents of Florida, and this Complaint arises out of and relates to those
activities, namely threats of patent infringement, and the commission of tortious conduct
within the State of Florida.

11.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§1391(b) and (d) and
1400(b).
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DEFENDANTS’ THREATS OF PATENT INFRINGEMENT

12. Defendant TAMA is the owner by assignment of the ‘353 Patent entitled
“Method of making elastic plastic netting made of oriented strands.” A true and correct
copy of the ‘353 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

13.  Plaintiff AUTOMATED is a licensed United States distributor of certain
products manufactured by Karatzis, S.A., a corporation organized under the laws of
Greece, whose offices are located in Crete, Greece. A copy of certain non-confidential
portions of Plaintiff's distribution agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, the remaining
portions being redacted to protect its confidentiality.

14.  Oninformation and belief, Karatzis manufactures products in Greece. These
products include a pallet netwrap generally described in the advertising literature attached
hereto as Exhibit “C” and referred to hereinafter as the “pallet netwrap.”

15.  The claims of the ‘353 Patent are all drawn to a method of making a knitted
thermoplastic netting having longitudinal ribbons with an orientation of 1:4 to 1:5. During
the prosecution history of this patent, the applicant, in order to overcome a rejection by the
examiner, specifically limited the fabrication method for both longitudinal and lateral
ribbons to the use of linear low density polyethylene (“LLDDPE”"). The applicant further
argued the merits of its invention over the prior art by asserting the superiority of LLDPE
over high density polyethylene (“HDPE”) materials for netting products.

16.  The Karatzis pallet netwrap does not meet the limitations of the ‘353 Patent
method claims. Instead, the Karatzis netwrap has lateral ribbons of HDPE, which are
precisely the type of ribbons distinguished in the Patent Office by TAMA in order to obtain
the issuance of the ‘353 Patent.
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17.  The Karatzis pallet netwrap accordingly does not infringe any valid claim of
the ‘353 Patent and Defendant, as the owner of the patent, is estopped from asserting
infringement against such a product.

18.  Notwithstanding the fact that the Karatzis pallet netwrap does not infringe the
‘353 Patent, Defendant, has repeatedly threatened Karatzis with infringement of the ‘353
Patent should Karatzis sell the product in the United States.

19. On or about February 15, 2001, TAMA, through its New York counsel,
Morgan & Finnegan, LLP, forwarded the letter attached hereto as Exhibit “D", wherein
Defendant threatened to sue Karatzis and “several of its distributors” for infringement of
Claim 1 of the ‘353 Patent. This letter was forwarded to a law firm in the Middle District of
Florida.

20. Onorabout March 13, 2001, TAMA caused to be forwarded to the same law
firm in Orlando, Florida a “courtesy copy” of a Summons and Complaint filed by Defendant
against Karatzis, S.A. and “several of its distributors in the United States”, as is shown in
the attached Exhibit “E”.

21.  Plaintiff AUTOMATED is not a party in the aforementioned litigation in
California.

22. Plaintiff AUTOMATED is, however, the only presently authorized master
distributor in the United States of Karatzis manufactured products, including the Karatzis
pallet netwrapping.

23. Plaintiff is selling in the Middle District of Florida the Karatzis-branded

netwrap accused of infringement of the ‘353 Patent by Defendant TAMA.
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24.  As aresult of the threats and accusations of infringement by TAMA, Plaintiff
AUTOMATED has areasonable apprehension of suit for patent infringement by Defendant.
Plaintiff further has reasonable apprehension that Plaintiffs customers will likewise be
threatened or sued with infringement of the ‘353 Patent.

25. The threats of infringement by TAMA have chilled the marketplace for
Karatzis manufactured products, and this chilling of the market will cause Plaintiff
AUTOMATED to lose sales, revenue and profitability and has placed Plaintiff in doubt as
to its right to sell the Karatzis-manufactured pallet netwrap.

26. Plaintiff AUTOMATED is offering and will continue to offer, pending a ruling
by the Court, the Karatzis manufactured pallet netwrap in competition with Defendants in
the Middle District of Florida.

27. In addition, Defendant TAMANET has actively accused Plaintiff of
infringement of the ‘353 Patent and has widely disseminated accusations of infringement
to Plaintiff's customers in the Middle District of Florida.

28. As one example of the above-mentioned threats, at a trade show in Tampa,
Florida, on or about March 17, 2001, representatives of TAMANET, in the presence of a
representative of Plaintiff, and in the presence of prospective customers of Plaintiff, most
of whom were representatives of large Florida-based citrus customers, stated in substance
that Karatzis had “stolen” TAMA's patent and that they (TAMA and TAMANET) were taking
Karatzis to court. These and similar statements were made to the prospective customers
of Plaintiff in order to discourage the customers from purchasing Karatzis manufactured

product marketed from Plaintiff.
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29. Plaintiff alleges, on information and belief, that TAMANET has continued to
repeat similar comments to customers and others in Florida for the purpose of interfering
with Plaintiffs ability to offer Karatzis manufactured products in competition with
Defendants in the Middle District of Florida and elsewhere.

30. Allconditions precedent to the filing of this action have occurred or have been
waived or excused by law.

COUNT
CLAIM FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT OF PATENT NONINFRINGEMENT

31.  This Countl is a claim against TAMA and TAMANET under the Declaratory
Judgment Act for a judgment declaring that Plaintiff AUTOMATED’s products,
manufactured by Karatzis, do not infringe any valid claim of the ‘353 Patent.

32. Plaintiff incorporates and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through
30, above.

33. Plaintiff has a reasonable apprehension of suit for infringement of the ‘353
Patent.

34. Piaintiff's products do notinfringe the ‘353 Patent and Defendant is estopped
from asserting a claim of infringement against such products in light of the express
representations made to the United States Patent Office to obtain issuance of the patent.

35. There is an actual and continuing controversy between the parties over the
issue of infringement. Without the intervention of the Court, Plaintiff will suffer from
accusations of infringement and doubt as to the validity of the claims thereof.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff hereby prays for the following relief against Defendant:
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(@) A declaratory judgment in accordance with 28 U.S.C. §2201(a)
declaring that the ‘353 Patent is not infringed; and
(b) A permanent injunction against Defendant from all future threats or
attempts to enforce the ‘353 Patent against Plaintiff or its customers.

COUNT Il
CLAIM FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT OF PATENT INVALIDITY

36. This Count |l is a claim against TAMA under the Declaratory Judgment Act
for a judgment declaring that the ‘353 Patent is invalid.

37. PIlaintiffincorporates and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through
30, above.

38. PIlaintiff has a reasonable apprehension of suit for infringement of the ‘353
Patent.

39. Plaintiff alleges, on information and belief, that the ‘353 Patent is invalid
under the provisions of 35 U.S.C. §§102(a), 102(b), 102(g) or 35 U.S.C. §103.

40. There is an actual and continuing controversy between the parties over the
validity of the ‘353 Patent that requires the intervention of this Court. Without such
intervention, Plaintiff will continue to suffer from accusations of infringement concerning its
primary product line and doubts as to the validity of the ‘353 Patent.

WHEREFORE, Piaintiff hereby prays for the following relief against Defendants:

(@) A declaratory judgment in accordance with 28 U.S.C. §2201(a)
declaring that the ‘353 Patent is invalid;
(b) A permanent injunction against Defendants on all future conduct

threatening or attempting to enforce the ‘353 Patent against Plaintiff; and
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(c) Such other injunctive and ancillary relief as may be appropriate under
the circumstances, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2202.

COUNT Il
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH PROSPECTIVE BUSINESS ADVANTAGES

41.  This Countlllis a claim fordamages and injunctive relief against Defendants
TAMA and TAMANET under the common law of the State of Florida.

42. Plaintiff incorporates and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through
40, above.

43. Atall times material to this action, Plaintiff was an authorized United States
reseller of Karatzis manufactured products, including the Karatzis pallet netwrapping.

44. Plaintiff was representing the Karatzis line of manufactured products at the
United Show in Tampa, Florida during the period March 17 through March 19, 2001.

45. TAMANET was also present at the trade show representing itself and
Defendant TAMA. During the trade show, Defendant TAMANET was promoting and
offering for sale TAMA products on behalf of both Defendants.

46. During the aforementioned trade show, Plaintiff was engaged in discussions
with prospective citrus customers in Florida who are large potential users of pallet netting
such as the Karatzis manufactured pallet netwrap.

47.  While Plaintiff was presenting the benefits of purchasing Karatzis products,
Defendant TAMANET, on behalf of itself and Defendant TAMA, through representatives
acting on behalf of both Defendants, stated, in the presence of Plaintiff and to Plaintiff's

prospective customers that Karatzis — referring not only to Karatzis the company but to
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Plaintiff — had “stolen our patent” and that “we are taking them to court” and similar words
to the effect that Plaintiff had “stolen” the ‘353 Patent.

48. These conversations occurred in Tampa, Florida on or aboutMarch 17, 2001,
and in the presence of specific prospective customers of Plaintiff.

49. Thereafter, Defendant TAMANET distributed, on behalf of itself and
Defendant TAMA, press releases to reflect that the Karatzis manufactured products
infringe the ‘353 Patent, and forwarded in commerce such press releases to known
customers or prospective customers of Plaintiff. An authentic representation of such press
release is attached hereto as Exhibit “F”.

50. Defendants are continuing at the present time, and will continue to do so
unless enjoined by this Court, to repeat the aforementioned statements of and concerning
Plaintiff and the Karatzis product line Plaintiff represents.

51.  Plaintiff enjoyed a business relationship with the customers at the trade show
to whom the above-mentioned statements were made, and enjoys a business relationship
with the prospective customers to whom the press releases and similar representations by
Defendants were made and are continuing to be made.

52. Defendants well know that Plaintiff has such a business relationship with the
customers, and Defendants sought deliberately, knowingly and intentionally to interfere
with such relationship by making statements such as those outlined above and by
repeating accusations of infringement of the ‘353 Patent like those made in the press

releases forwarded to Plaintiff's customers.
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53.  Atall times material to this action, Defendants knew that the aforementioned
statements of and concerning the Karatzis pallet netting were false in that the Karatzis
products offered for sale by Plaintiff do not infringe any valid claim of the ‘353 Patent.

54. Defendants acted knowingly, willfully, and in bad faith, and with the intent to
interfere with the business relationships of Plaintiff.

55.  Plaintiff has sustained damage in the form of lost sales and profits as a result
of the interference of Defendants.

56.  Plaintiff will continue to suffer lost business as the result of the Defendants’
continuing representations that Plaintiff and Karatzis have “stolen” the patent and are
infringing the patent.

57. As adirect and proximate result of the aforementioned conduct, Plaintiff will
suffer and will continue to suffer irreparable injury unless this Court enjoins Defendants
from continued acts of interference.

58. Plaintiff accordingly has no adequate remedy at law and will continue to
suffer unjustified interference with its business relationships with customers in Florida and
elsewhere unless this Court enjoins further improper conduct by Defendants.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff hereby prays for the following relief against Defendants:

(@) A preliminary and thereafter permanent injunction against improper
interference with the respective business relationships between Plaintiff and its customers;

(b)  Compensatory damages for lost profits Plaintiff would have made, but
for the acts of interference;

(c) Such other damages as are authorized by law; and

(d)  Costs of this action.
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COUNT IV
TRADE DISPARAGEMENT IN VIOLATION
OF SECTION 43(a) OF THE LANHAM ACT

59. This Count IV is a claim against Defendants TAMA and TAMANET under
Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a)(1)(B).

60. Plaintiff incorporates and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through
40, above.

61.  Atall times material to this action, Plaintiff was an authorized United States
reseller of Karatzis manufactured products, including the Karatzis pallet netwrapping.

62. Defendants TAMA and TAMANET are direct competitors of Plaintiff in the
same geographic and product markets.

63. Beginning at least in March 2001 and continuing to the present time, in the
Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, Defendants TAMA and TAMANET have, in
connection with commercial advertising or promotion, misrepresented the nature,
characteristics and qualities of Plaintiffs goods, services and commercial activities in
connection with the marketing and sale of Defendants’ goods and services in interstate
commerce.

64. The pattern of misrepresentation has included representing to Plaintiff's
customers at the United Show in Tampa, Florida, during the period March 17 through
March 19, 2001, that Karatzis — referring not only to Karatzis, the company, but to Plaintiff,
as the seller of Karatzis manufactured products — had “stolen our patent” and that the
Karatzis products infringed the ‘353 Patent.

65. Thereafter Defendants caused to be distributed in commerce to customers
in the Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, including customers of Plaintiff, press
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releases falsely charging that the Karatzis manufactured products sold by Plaintiff infringe
the ‘353 Patent.

66. Plaintiff alleges, on information and belief, that Defendants are continuing at
the present time to falsely represent in connection with the advertising and promotion of
their own products, that Plaintiff's products infringe the ‘353 Patent and that Plaintiff and
Karatzis have “stolen” the TAMA ‘353 Patent.

67. These and similar false representations of alleged fact and promotions have
reduced the marketability of Plaintiffs products and have caused Plaintiff to lose sales to
customers.

68. The aforementioned misrepresentations of alleged fact of and concerning
Plaintiff's products are false and were known by Defendants to be false at the time such
statements were made in that Defendants well knew that Plaintiff's products did not infringe
any valid claim of the ‘353 Patent, and Plaintiff has not “stolen” Defendants’ patent.

69. Defendants published the above-mentioned false representations about
Plaintiffs products, goods and services with actual knowledge of the falsity of such
statements or in reckless disregard of the truth.

70. Defendants acted in bad faith and with the specific intent to harm Plaintiff and
to reduce the marketability of Plaintiff's products.

71.  Asadirect and proximate result of the aforementioned false advertising and
false representations with respect to Plaintiff's goods, services and commercial activities,
Plaintiff has suffered monetary loss, including the loss of profits from the sale of the falsely

accused Karatzis pallet netwrapping. Plaintiff's lost profits include the loss of profits
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Plaintiff would have garnered for sale to citrus related customers in Florida, as a direct
result of the false representations of and concerning Plaintiff's products.

72. Defendants will continue their campaign of false advertising and false
representations concerning Plaintiffs products unless this Court enjoins them from
disseminating further false representations of alleged material fact.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff hereby prays for the following relief against Defendants:

(a) Compensatory damages for lost profits Plaintiff would have made but
for the improper conduct of Defendants;

(b) A permanent injunction against further false representations or false
commercial advertising of or concerning Plaintiff's goods, services, or activities;

(c) Attorneys’ fees and damages in accordance with 15 U.S.C. §1117;

(d)  Costs of this action; and

(e) Such further relief as the Court deems appropriate under the
circumstances.

COUNTYV
TRADE LIBEL

73. This Count V is a claim against Defendants TAMA and TAMANET for trade
libel under the common law of the State of Florida.

74.  Plaintiff incorporates and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through
30 and 63 through 72, above.

75. Beginning at least in March 2001 and continuing to the present time

Defendants, in the Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, have falsely disparaged
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products, goods and services.

76. Defendants’ publication of false and disparaging statements of and
concerning Plaintiff's goods and services includes, but is not limited to:

(a) Statements to the effect that Plaintiff and Karatzis have “stolen”
Defendants’ patent;

(b)  Statements to the effect that the Karatzis product line promoted in
Florida by Plaintiff infringes the ‘353 Patent; and

(c)  Statementstothe effectthat Plaintiff's customers should not purchase
Plaintiff's products because these products infringed the ‘353 Patent and Karatzis, the
manufacturer, “stole” TAMA'’s patent.

77. Defendants, in addition, published in commerce, in Florida and elsewhere,
the press release in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and have forwarded such press
release to specific known customers of Plaintiff.

78. The above-mentioned disparaging statements of and concerning Plaintiff's
products, goods and services are false and were known to be false at the time the
statements were made, and that Defendants well knew that Plaintiff had not “stolen” the
‘353 Patent, that the Karatzis manufactured products sold by Plaintiff do not infringe the
‘353 Patent, and that Plaintiffs customers would not be purchasing an infringing product
as a result.

79. Defendants acted in bad faith and with the specific intent to harm Plaintiff and
to detract from the marketability of Plaintiff's products, goods and services, and to divert
sales from Plaintiff to Defendants.
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80. As a direct and proximate result of the disparaging statements made by
Defendants, Plaintiff has lost profits which Plaintiff would have garnered from customers
but for the false, defamatory and disparaging statements of Defendants.

81. Defendants will continue to repeat the aforementioned disparaging and
defamatory statements of and concerning Plaintiff and Plaintiff's products uniess the Court
joins further acts of disparagement.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for the following relief against Defendants:

(@) Compensatory damages for lost profits Plaintiff would have made but
for the improper conduct of Defendants;
(b)  Such other damages as are authorized by law; and
(c) Costs of this action.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby demands trial by jury on all issues so triable.

DATED this T day of May, 2001,

Respectfully submitted,
Allen, Dyer, Doppelt,
Milbrath & Gilchrist, P.A.
255 South Orange Avenue
Suite 1401

P.O. Box 3791

Orlando, Florida 32802-3791

Telephone (407) 841-2330
Telecopier (407) 841-2343

ST il

Stephen D. Milbrath
Florida Bar No. 239194
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1

METHOD OF MAKING ELASTIC PLASTIC
NETTING MADE OF ORIENTED STRANDS

This is a divisional application of co-pending applica- 5
tion Ser. No. 07/444,057 filed Nov. 30, 1989, now U.S.
Pat. No. 5,104,714,

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of the Invention

This invention relates to plastic knitted netting and its
use in wrapping loads on pallets and in wrapping agri-
cultural loads such as cylindrical bales of hay. Further,
this invention relates to a method of making thermo-
plastic ribbons used to knit the netting so as to achieve
the surprising result of excellent elasticity, elongation
and residual elasticity.

2. Description of Related Art

Wrapping pallet loads and agricuitural loads with
plastic film and with plastic netting to hold and stabilize
the Joads has become a widespread practice. The plastic
netting which has heretofore been used has been either
extruded netting or knitted nerting, such as Raschel
netting. Some manufacturers of extruded netting have
discovered that it is desirable to manufacture a netting
having a high degree of stretch before tensile failure and
having a high degree of elasticity. In the past, users of
netting who have wanted high strength in their netting
have had to use extruded netting. Extruded netting has
had greater strength than knitted netting due to the
much greater amount of material (i.e., greater cross-sec-
tional area) contained in each strand of netting. With
the recent awareness that extruded netting could aiso be
made elastic as well as strong, there has been more
interest in the use of extruded netting than in the past.

Knitted plastic netting is made of very thin ribbons of
thermoplastic material in order to allow it to be knitted;
and because of the thinness of the ribbons, knitted net-
ting has not been considered as useful as extruded net-
ting for heavy loads where tensile strength is important.
Because of this perception, manufacturers of knitted
netting have always attempted t0 make their netting as
strong as possible while still using thin ribbons of ther-
moplastic in order to keep cost and weight as low as
passible.

Whether one is using extruded netting or knitted
netting, it is desirable to have a netting which is both
strong and elastic. Strength is obviously an important
physical characteristic in order to avoid having the
nemngbmkandunnng the load to spill. Elasticity in
a netting is a desirable characteristic because it provides
continued tension to the load after wrapping and after
the load may have experienced settling and a reduction
in volume. A load wrapped by a netting having insuffi-
cient elasticity will become loose and unstable. Even
with loads which will not settle or reduce in volume, it
is undesirable to use a non-clastic netting because tight-
ening the netting sufficieatly to hold the load can some-
times damage the contents. Whereas, use of an elastic
netting can provide sufficient load-holding tension
without damage to the contents.

Although extruded netting is advantageous to use in
some applications, it has many undesirable characteris-
tics when compared to knitted netting. One, much Jess

extruded netting can be wound on the same dismeter 65

spool compared to a spool of knitted nerting. This disad-
vantage is important when one realizes how frequently
roils have to be changed on a pailet wrapping machine
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or how much storage space is needed to store the neces-
sary inventory of netting. The same amount of knitted
nerting of this invention takes one-third the space of
some conventional extruded netting.

Also, extrudev:lx'lettmgm'eatesgr-:atd:spasalpfmb~
lems. Because of the integral Jommg of the strands in
extruded netting, the structure is very inflexible and is
very difficult, if not impossible, to compact into s small
space; and when it is done, the netting tends to spring
open. The knitted netting of this invention is very easy
to dispose of and can be easily gathered into a small

- volume for disposal.

It would be very desirable to combine the benefits of
extruded netting and knitted netting in one netting
product; however, in the past there has never been a
way to combine the features of strength, stretchability
and elasticity in one netting. This has been because the
techniques used to strengthen a thermoplastic ribbon
were the very techniques used to make a ribbon inelas-
tic, and the techniques used to make s thermoplastic
ribbon elastic resuited in a2 weaker ribbon.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

This invention is directed to knitted plastic netting
possessing an elongation (i.c., stretching) of more than
about 609 before breaking, an elastic limit of more than
sbout 6%, and will retain at least about 15% of its origi-
nal length when stretched more than 409%. Further, in
use, the netting of this invention is preferably stretched
about 30-50% when wrapped around its load. This
invention is particularly directed to a method of creat-
ing such a netting.

It has been discovered that the desired properties of
the knitted netting of this invention is achieved by pro-
ducing 2 substantizlly unoriented primary film consist-
ing essentially of a thermoplastic, such as a polyolefin,
slitting the primary film into ribbons, then orienting the
ribbons by an amount to maximize the tensile energy at
break or to at least about 80% of such maximum value,
and then knitting such ribbons into a netting having
longitudinal and lateral ribbons. It has been found that
practicing this invention can optimize the relationship
between the strength, elasticity, and stretchability. In
particular, the preferred knitted netting of this invention
will have an elongation at break of more than about
60%, an elastic fimit of more than about 6%, and elastic-
ity of more than about 15% when elongated more than
40%.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a force-clongation graph comparing the
clastic limit of a prior art knitted netting not made by
the method of this invention with a knitted netting made
by the preferred embodiment of this invention.

FIG. 2 is a force-clongation graph showing the ten-
sile strain recovery for a knitted netting made by the
preferred embodiment of this invention after various
amounts of elongation.

FIG. 3 is a graph which compares the force-elonga-
tion characteristics of a prior art knitted netting with a
knitted netting made according to this invention.

FIG. 4A is a graph which illustrates the residual
tensile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted
netting of this invention after 20% elongation up to 11
minutes.

FIG. 4B is a graph which illustrates the residual ten-
sile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted net-
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ting of this invention after 40% elongation up to 11
minutes,

FIG. 5 contains a graph which shows the residual
tensile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted
netting of this invention up to 264 hours.

FIG. 6 shows a sampie of the preferred netting of this
invention.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE
INVENTION AND BEST MODE

In the preferred mode of this invention, the primary
thermoplastic film is made by 2 conventional blown-
film technique utilizing small thermoplastic pellets. Al-
though, other methods of making the primary film can
be used, such as the chill roll slot cast extrusion method
or the water-quenched slot cast extrusion method, the
blown film method is preferred. The netting may be
formed of any thermoplastic material which can be
formed into knittable ribbons. The thermopiastic mate-
rial may be single polyolefin or a blend of polyolefins.
The presently preferred material is linear low density
polyethylene (LLDPE) which has been copolymerized
with the alpha olefin, octene, and having a specific
weight of about 0.92 g/cc.

It is well-known that when making primary film,
increased orientation is achieved by pulling the end of
the film out faster than it enters, wherein the ratio of the
output velocity to the input velocity is the orientation
value. It has been discovered that the desirable netting
of this invention is obtained by using primary film that
is substantiaily unoriented in any direction. Particularly,
the film should have an orientation in the lateral direc-
tion of about 1.0, and an orientation in the longitudinal
direction of between sbout 1.0-1.2. The preferable
method of producing a primary film which is substan-
tially unoriented in both directions is by producing the
film with a blow-up ratio of 1:1 to 1:1.2. It is preferred
that the thickness of the primary film which is used to
make the longitudinal ribbons to be knitted into the
netting be between about 0.08 mm to 0.10 mm, and
preferably about 0.09 mm; and that the primary film
which is to be used to make the lateral ribbons have a
thickness of between about 0.04 mm and 0.06 mm, and
preferrably sbout 0.05 mm.

After the primary film is made, it is then passed to a
machine for slitting the film into ribbons. The ribbons
which are to be used as the longitudinal ribbons in the
knitted netting, as well as the ribbons which are ta be
used as the lateral ribbons in the knitted netting are
preferably slit into the same width of between about 2.4
mm and 2.6 mm and preferably about 2.5 mm. After the
slitting process the ribbons are then stretched and ori-
ented in the longitudinal direction to a value of between
about 1:4 and 1:5, and preferrably about 1:4.25. This
orientation produces a longitudinai ribbon having a
thickness of between about 0.04 mm and 0.05 mm, and
preferrably about 0.044 mm, and a lateral ribbon having
a thicimess of between about 0.02 mm and 0.03 mm, and
preferrably about 0.024 mm. After crientation, both the
longitudinal and the lateral ribbons have a width of
between 1.2 mm and 1.3 mm, and preferrably about 1.23
mm. The denier of the preferred longitudinal ribbons is
between shout 430 and 460, and preferrably about 448,
and the denier of the preferred lateral ribbons is be-
tween 240 and 250, and preferrably about 244. The
denier of a ribbon is a unit of weight and is defined as
the weight in grams of 9000 meters of the ribbon. The
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next step in the process is 10 oil the ribbons and to knit
them using & Raschel machine into a knitted nerting.

It has been determined that by using a primary film
which was substantially unoriented durir.g its manufac-
ture and by properly orienting the ribbons after cutting
the film into ribbons, the desired characteristics for
elongation at break, elastic limit, and elasticity can be
achieved. The desired properties are achieved by hav-
ing a high “tensile energy to break” value, preferrably
more than 80% of the maximum possible value, and
more preferrably maximizing the “tensile energy to
break™ (TEB). The TEB is defined in ASTM D 882-83
as the area under the stress-strain curve to the break
point. However, because netting having an elongation
at break value of more than 130% are genenily of no
commercial value, it is preferred to measure and maxi-
mize the TEB up to 130% elongation. If netting having
a greater elongation at break is commerciaily useful, for
example, 150% or more, then the TEB should be mea-
sured and maximized up to this greater value.

Although it has been determined that in the preferred
embodiment using the preferred thermoplastic material,
the preferred ribbon orientation is about 1:4.25, when
other materials are used, the proper ribbon orientation
will need to be determined by preparing stress-strain
curves for the netting made from the material at various
ribbon orientations and then determining which orienta-
tion maximizes the TEB value. This ribbon orientation
will provide a knitted netting having the most desired
balance of strength (i.e., stress at break), elongation at
break, elastic limit, stretchability (i.e., strain at break),
and elasticity. Although it is preferrable to select this
proper orientation for both the longitudinal and lateral
ribbons, the invention could be practiced by orienting
only the longitudinal ribbons pursuant to this invention
and orienting the lateral ribbons by any of the prior art
methods not in accordance with this invention. This
new netting has been compared to a prior art netting
which is made from high density poiyethyiene. This
comparison is best seen in Table I on the following page
and in FIGS. 1-3.

TABLE 1

LONGITUDINAL LONGITUDINAL
RIBBONS OF RIBBONS
PRIOR ART OF NEW
NETTING NETTING

Ratio Of Tape 1:7.2 1:4.25

: ‘ MM. 2.3 MM

Width Of Tape Prior  5.08

To Orientation i —

Width Of Tape After  1.89 MM. 123 MM.

Orientats

Thickness Of Tape 0.080 M.M. 0.09 MM,

Prior To Orientation

Thickness Of Tape 0.030 M.M. 0.044 MM,

After Orientution

Denier Of Tape After 483 DEN. 448 DEN.
LATERAL RIB- LATERAL RIB-.
BONS OF PRIOR BONS OF NEW
ART NETTING NETTING

Ratio Of Tape 1:6.8 1:4.28

Orientass

Width Of Tape Prior 234 MM. { 25MM.

To Orientation

Width Of Tape Aftier  0.97 M.M. 123 MM.

Orientati

Thickness Of Tape 0.07 MM. 0.05 M.M.

Prior To Orientation

Thickness Of Tape 0.027 M.M. 0.026 MM,

After Orientation

Denier Of Tape After 213 DEN. 244 DEN

-
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TABLE l-continued
Orientation
MATERIAL ‘%&) LLDPE
Specific Weight 7 GR/CC l 7
% 10 GR/M? '?Buask%g"
Square Meter Of
Netting
Recommended Elon-  3-4% 30-50%
gation Under
Normal Palletizing
Conditions
Elastic Limit 1% 10%
Elastcity 4% 30%

F1G. 1 represents the relationship between the elon-
gation of the respective netting and the applied load. the
upper portion of the curves represents elongation as the
load is increased, and the bottom portion represents the
elongation as the load is reieased. It is seen that the new
netting material is more elastic than the old netting,
both in the sense of being more easily elongated and in
having a higher elastic limit. The elastic limit is defined
as that percentage of elongation experienced by the
ribbon after which the ribbon can return to its original
length. If the ribbon is streiched beyond the elastic
limit, the ribbon undergoes irreversible deformnation,
meaning that when the load is released, the ribbon does
not return 1o its original length.

Referring now to FIG. 3, this graph bears the impor-
tant force—elongation curves for the new netting and
the prior art netting. It is seen that the prior art netting
is not nearly as stretchable as the new netting. It is seen
that the new netting can undergo elongation of 130% of
its original length, whereas the prior art netting can
only undergo elongation of about 159%. It can be visual-
ized by looking at the two curves in FIG. 3 that the
tensile energy at break (TEB) for the new nerting is
much greater than that for the prior art netting. Calcu-
lating the TEB for each netting results in the new net-
ting having a TEB value of about 58.75 Mjouies/m’
(mega joules per cubic meter) , while the TEB value of
the prior art netting is about 26.11 Mjoules/M?.

Another benefit of the new netting can be seen by
viewing FIG. 2, which shows the hysteresis of the new
netting after undergoing elongation of 209%, 60%. and
100%. It is seen that after 20% elongarion, the netting
nearly returns to its original length, whereas, after elon-
gations of 60% and 100%, the netting returns to 30%
elongation and 70% elongation, respectively based on
its original length. This characteristic of the new netting
provides residual stress and continued tension on a load
regardiess of how much the netting is Stretched during
the wrapping process.

Tuming now to FIG. 4, the residual tensile tension
for the new petting after elongations of 20% and 40% is
plotted versus time, and it is apparent that the new
netting maintains its tension for a long time, as shown in
FIG. 8.

EXAMPLE

Thermoplastic pellets consisting essentially of linear
low density polyethylene (LLDPE) are extruded by the
blow-film method into one primary film having a thick-
ness of about 0.9 mm. This filmm will be used to make the
longitudinal ribbons. The same thermoplastic is ex-
truded into a film having a thickness of about 0.05
tobeﬁtomﬁeﬁmnEEu The LLDPE is

y Dow pany and is sold under the
name DOWLEX 2045 E (General Purpases) . The film
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is produced under conditions such that it undergoes no
orientation in either the longitudinal or lateral direction.

Once the primary film is made, it is fed into an 1.S.0.
machine for slitting into ribbons and stre.ching in order
to produce the properly oriented ribbons. The 1.S.0..
machine is manufactured by L.S.0., a company located
at Rosenfeld, West Germany. The film for both the
longitudinal ribbons and the lateral ribbons are fed into
the LS.O. machine at 2 temperature of 100110 degrees
C. The longitudinsl ribbons are first slit to a width of 2.5
mm and then orieated to a value of 1:4.25. The width
and thickness of the longitudinal ribbons after orienta-
tion sre 1.23 mm and 0.044 mm, respectively. The lat-
eral ribbons are first slit to & width of 2.54 mm and then
oriented to a value of 1:4.25. The width and thickness of
the lateral ribbons after orientation are 123 mm and
0.024 mm, respectively.

The denier of the longitudinal ribbon prior to orienta-
tion is 1900, and after orientation of 1:4.25 is 448. The
denier of the lateral ribbon prior to orientation is 1040
and after orientation of 1:4.25 is 244. The longitudinal
ribbons and the lateral ribbons are then placed on their
respective grooves for knitting on the Raschel knitting
machines. The Raschel knitting machine then produces
a knitted netting which is rolled up onto a spool for
future use. The netting has a width of up to 500 cm and
the weight of the netting is about 10 grams/square me-
ter.
The completed netting is shown in FIG. § wherein a
section of netting 1 is comprised of longitudinal ribbons
2 and lateral ribbons 3.

This netting stretches 1309 when stretched at the
rate of 1009% per minute before breaking, has an elastic
limit of 109, and has a tensile strain recovery of 30%
after elongation of between 40% to 130%. A 50 cm
width of this netting will break ac 40 Kg.

This knitted netting is utilized with a conventional
pailet wrapping machine and the load is wrapped by
stretching the netting around the load so that it elon-
gates 20%-40% and is wrapped in a spinal or parallel
fashion by a wrapping machine intended for this par-
pose or by hand. Because of the characteristics of this
netting, round bales of hay can be wrapped by only one
and one-third circumferences around the load.

Although the invention has been described in its pre-
ferred embodiment, it will be apparent to those skilled
in the art that the procedures and techniques of this
invention can be applied to other materials to achieve
the desired results of this invention. Accordingly, the
scope of this invention is defined by the scope of the
following claims.

What is cizimed is:

1. A method of making a knitted thermoplastic net-
ting having longitudinal ribbons and lateral ribbons,

comprising the steps of:
producing a_substantially unoriented pri film
i of Ii i i
slitting the substantially uncriented primary film into
longitudinal ribbons;

orienting by stretching the longitudinal ribbons to
have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantiaily unoriented length of about 1:4 to 1:5;
and

knitting said oriented longitudinal ribbons and the
lateral ribbons into a knitted net;

wherein said knitted net has an elastic limit of more
than about 6%, an elongation at brezk of more than
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about 609%, and an elasticity of more than about
15% when stretched more than 40%.

2. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing of the step of orienting by stretching the longitudi-
nal ribbons to produce a tensile energy at break (TEB)
of about 80% of the maximum TEB possible for said
ribbons measured up to an elongation of 130%.

3. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing the steps of:

orienting by stretching said longitudinal ribbons to a

width of between sbout 1.2 mm and 1.3 mm, a
thickness of between about 0.04 mm and 0.05 mm,
and a denier of between about 430 and 460; and

orienting by stretching the lateral ribbons to have a

width of between about 1.2 mm and 1.3 mm, a
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thickness of between about 0.2 mm and 0.03 mm,
and a denier of between about 240 and 250.

4. The method according to claim 3, further compris-
ing the step of orientating said longitudinal ribbons to a
ratio of about 1:4.25.

§. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing the step of orienting by stretching the laterai ribbons
to have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantislly unoriented length in excess of 1:4.

6. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing the step of orienting by stretching the laterai ribbons
to have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantially unoriented length of about 1:4 to 1:5.

. L J [ ] *®
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1 &udragng xm xizbs py woydav dpog, phrpa ) Saratn Oa Osmpndei avaykaio va apalpedei ard 10 xapdv.

14. ANEZAPTHTOL LYNEPIATHY

O Aviurpéoonos Ba Bewpeitm aveldpmrog ouvepyime xat Kavéve axd To KEPEXOpEva Ton Zapdviog
&ev Ga xabiovh mv owspyacia aveh efppmpévy spracaxi) axton). opdppudym Zmpsipnon ¥ mpooam
gtmpia. O aviepdoonos Ba siver axoxdaioTixi vrenduvog km Ba Sriaguadooa tv Kapatln A E. and
oroeadfiRote km Okeg g ahibosy 9opoy, auafdav i xdoroug cvumprlapfavouivov adhd pm
mpﬂéw OV Poporankdv xpatficeav, eépov s1oodiuatog, FICA, xa axofnuieong spyaniod

1S. AYNATOTHTA EKXQPHEHL

To xapév Zoppuovatixd, ta Sxmopcera xo o vRoppedHon; xov TPOKRTOWY uxd auTdé @POpolv
pooemXE tov Avorpéonro xm v Ba exywpoiviar pe oRESMAOTE evipyaia TOD Avaapaohmm: 1
extélean tou vopov zupd pévo sv avl oxeriferm pe perafifacn ovactucd Siav tav xariev Touv
Avuxrpoothnov 1 xatémy cuvaiveons g Kapaeln AE. .

16. AKEPAIOTHTA

To napdv Zvppuvnnixd qovictd v =Afipn cuupuvia tav gephv, axvpdver xm xabiotd avioyupa 6ia
Ta xponyodusve. coupovinxid UEteld toug xm xpofiiinerar mg TEAw éxppacn TG oVugEvIag Tow.
Onotabtixote tporomoinam % Peltimon o xponyodpeve xm exbxd ox 6,1 apoph 10 mapdv
Buppwvtxd Gu vivera ypaxtds ME TV VROTPAQT Tov Pcpdv, To Aapdy Svpguvicd Oa wespoyie
onowvsipnotze GAov EYYPAPOV ZOU EVEEXOLEVES £pXOVIaL OE GUYKPOLOT] S OVUNTV.

MPOZ NETOZH TON ANQTEPQ, 1 cupfadddyueva pépn, arofiéixoviag oy vomun Séopcoa toug
& Tov mapévrog, £xoVY 0 KaBE Eve. WRoYPAYEL Xa1 Spayice: o mapdY TV avaypapduevT) Nuipa

KAPATZH AE, AUTOMATED PACKAGING TECHNOLOGIES L1.C
Kovetavrivog Apxovedxng Yzépavog Izauog

Tithog: Fevicig AisvBuvnig Tidog: Nipéedpog

Huspoymvia: 03.04.2001 3,04,2001

@go10
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The balance of the Exclusive Sales Agreement has been redacted for
purposes of confidentiality.
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EXHIBIT “C”
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tretch paliet netwral

Due to it's Buiit-in memory pract.cally no overlap 15
; i - .
required. EVCHEL
This means savings up to 207 compared to a normal i ® machine,‘ro
b .

pallet netting. E




PALLET NETWRAP

TENSILE CORE DIA- _ CORE NET _ NUMBER
PRODUCTS METERS/ROLL gTRENGTH kgs 97S/™ METER mm WIDTH cm WIDTH cm OF WRAPS

PALLET NETWRAP
NORMAL

PALLET NETWRAP
ORMAL 3.500 60-70  3.3-3.5 76  5L5 50 21

PALLET NETWRAP
NORMAL 1. 000 60-70 3.3-3.5 50 51.5 50 21

7. 000 60-70 3.3-3.5 76 51.5 50 21

PALLET NETWRAP
NORMAL 500 60-70  3.3-3.5 50 51.5 50 21
PALLET NETWRAP

e FORCED 3.500 80-90  3.8-4.0 76  5L5 50 21

STRETCH PALLET NETWRAP

TENSILE CORE CORE NET _ NUMBER %
STRETCH PALLET NETWRAP METERS/ROLL gTRENGTHEKgs DIAMETER mm WIDTH cm WIDTH cm OF WRAPS &

4 STRETCH PALLET NETWRAP 4. 500 35 76 51. 50 50 21

¥ STRETCH PALLET NETWRAP 750 35 50 51. 50 50

21 ;

hellas ™

N6 AKARATZIS S. 8. Industrial Area 71110 Heraklion P.D Box 1400 Crete. Greece . Tel - (0811380000 Fax-[0811381400
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JOHN A. DIAZ

JOMN C, VASSIL
ALFRED P, gwgRTT
DAVID H. PFEFFER
HARRY C. MARCUS
ROBERT E. PAULSON
STEPHEN K. BMITH
KURT E. RICHTER

J. ROBERT DAILEY
EUGENE MORCZ

JOHN F. SWEENEY?
ARNOLD 5. RADY?
CHRISTOPHER A. HUGHES
WILLIAM 8. FEILERT
JANET DORE
JOSEPH A. CALVARUSO
JAMES W. gouLot
RICHARD C, KOMSON
ISRAEL BLUM
CHRISTOPHER K. HU
BARTHOLOMEW VERDIRAME

N

DICKERSON M. DOWNING
MARIA C, H. LIN

JOBEPRH A, DrGIROLAMO
MICHAEL P. DOUGHERTY
SETH J. ATLAS

ANDREW M. RIDDLES
BRUCE D. DERENZI
MICHAEL M. MURRAY
MARK J. ABATE

JOHN T. GALLAGHER
STEVEN F. MEYER
KENNETH H. SONNENFELD
DAVID H.T. KANE
SIEGRUN D. KANE

TONY V, PEZZANO
ANDREA L. WAYDA
WALTER G. HANCHUK?
JOHN W, OSBORNE

RESIDENT PARTNERS IN WASHINGTON

MICHAEL 8. MARCUS*t
JOHN E. HO&L*

COUNSEL

JEROME O. LEE

JOHN O. FOLEY
THOMAS P, DOWLING
WARREN H, ROTERT
ROGER 8. SMITH
JOSEPH C. REDMOND, JR.t
DAVID A. LOEWENSTEIN
STANLEY 8, GREEN '
KATHLEEN E. MCCARTHY
HERBERT WLECKER

~JOHN D. MORGAN
1893-1939

GEORGE B. FINNEGAN, JR.

1930-1998

HOBANT N. DURHAM
19301960

GRANVILLE M. PINK
19391994

ALFRED L. HAFFNER, JR.
1958-2000

Henry Estevez, Esq. .
Allen, Dyer, Doppelt, Milbrath
. & Gilchrist, P.A.

1401 Citrus Center
255 South Orange Avenue -
Post Office Box 3791
Orlando, Florida 32802-3791

Re:

g

MORGAN & FINNEGAN, L.L.P.

A Registered Limited Liability Partnership
345 PARK AVENUE
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10154-0053
(212) 758-4800

FACSIMILE: (212) 751-6849
www.morganfinnegan.com

WASHINGTON OFFICE
1778 £YE STREET, N.W.
SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20008-2401
TEL.: (202) 857-7887
FACSIMILE: (202) 857-7929

WRITER'S DIRECT DIAL NUMBER:

(212) 415-8503

February 15, 2001

$COTT D. GREENBERG
BRUCE D. RADIN

MARY J. MORRY
ROBERT K. GOETHALS
CINDY M. ZELSON
PETER N. FILL
KENNETH 8. WEITZMAN
RICHARD STRAUSSMAN
DOROTHY R. AUTH
DAVID V. ROSSI
GERARD A. HADDAD
RICHARD W. ERWINE
MICHAEL O. CUMMINGS
STEPHEN J. MANETTA
RICHARD W. BORK
KIMBER L. WILSON
JOHN T. MOEHRINGER
MARK J, SCHILDKRAUT
J. STEVEN RUTT*
CHRISTOPHER J. GASPART
SYBIL A. LOMBILLO
MATTHEW BLACKBURN®
JAMES HWA

BRETT M. HUTTON
JUSTIN L. KRIEGER
GARRETH A. SAROS!

WILLIAM BENJAMIN TABLER, i1}

NOAH M. LEIBOWITZ
TOD M. MELGAR
NAREN COBURN
JOHN KHEIT*
GERARD REINHARDT*
PETER ZURA*

KEATS A. QUINALTY*
TINI THOMAS

"NOT ADMITTED I NEW YORK

+ADMITTED 1N ‘A.NINOTON‘ D.C.

RECEIVED
FER 2 0 2001

DAVID M. LA BRUNOC*
CHARLES A. RATTNER*
KEITH J. MCWHA*t
CAROL M. GREEN
GREGORY PERRONE Y
ARUN CHANDRA
KENNETH P, WABanIEwiLe
CHARLES P. GUARINO
KERICKA K. DEWEY
MAUREEN MORAN
MAUREEN MCCABE
PAULA A, WITTMAYER®
ROBERT M. POLLARO*
KIMBERLY A, MULLER*
KEVIN C. ECKER

SETH BILVERMAN

SCIENTIFIC ADVISORS
KATHRYN M. SBROWN, PH, «
LESLIE A, SKRUNIAN, PH
DARRYL H. STEENSMA, PH -
JAMES P. DEMERS, PK,. "
BUNGHO HONG, PH, D,
CARYN DEHORATIUS, PH. *
EVELYN M. KWON, PH. D.

WILLIAM £. SEKY]
RICHARD D. RATCHFORD,
ANGUS GILL

BRIAN W. BROWN
ANNALISA LEONE
VINCENT P. DINARQLS

A.D.D.M.&G.

U.S. Patent No. 5,256,353 of Tama Plastic Industry

Our File No. 1874-4016: Your Ref.: 24223

Dear Mr. Estevez:

This will acknowledge your letter of February 8. As I have made clear previously, we

disagree with your position. The claim language is very clear. The specification, e.g. in column

4, is very clear. The invention resides in the use of oriented longitudinal LLDPE ribbons.

According to your statements, your client’s product uses exactly that. Nothing in the patent
prosecution estops Tama Plastic Industry from applying claim 1 of the ‘353 patent, as written, to
your client’s product.

602098_1

We are currently arranging for the testing of a sample of your client’s product recently
obtained from a distributor. We expect the testing to be completed within the next several
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" - . MORGAN & FINNEGAN, L.L.P.

Henry Estevez, Esq.
February 15, 2001
Page 2

weeks. Following receipt of the test results, we have every expectation that your client and
several of its distributors will be sued for infringement of claim 1 of the ‘353 patent.

If in advance of litigation, you would like to discuss a settlement of Tama Plastic
Industry’s infringement claim against your client and several of its distributors, including a
graceful exit by your client from sales of the infringing product in the U.S. market, please let me
know. '

Very truly yours,
SO
David H. Pfeffer

DHP:mjp

602098_1
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JOHN C. vASSIL

ALFRED P. EWERT t
DAVID H. PFLFFER
HARRY C. MARCUS
ROBERT €. PAULSON
STEPHEN R. SMITH
KURT E. RICHTER

J. ROBERT DAILEY
EUGENE MOROZ

JOHN F. SWEENEY?
ARNOLD I. RADY?
CHRISTOPHEN A, HUGHES
WILLIAM 8. FEILERT
JANET DORE

JOSEPH A. CALVARUSO
JAMES wW. GOULD?
RICHARD C. KOMSON
ISRAEL BLUM
CHRISTOPHER K. HU
BARTHOLOMEW VERDIRAME
DICKERSON M. DOWNING

N

MARIA C. H. LIN
JOSEPH A. DEGIROLAMO
MICHAEL P. DOUGHERTY
SETH J, ATLAS

ANDREW M. RIDDLES
BRUCE O, OcRENZI
MICHAEL M. MURRAY
MARK J. ABATE

JOHN T. GALLAGHER
STEVEN F. MEYER
KENNETH H, SONNENFELD
DAVID H.T. KANE
SIEGRUN D. KANE

TONY V. PEIZANO

ANDREA L. WAYDA
WALTER G. HANCHUK?
JOMN W, OSBORNE
BRUCE D. RADIN

ROBERT K. GOETHALS

RESIDENT PARTNERS IN WASHINGTON

MICHAEL S, MARCUS*t
JOMN E, HOEL*
STANLEY 8, GREEN"!

COUNSEL

JEROME G. LEE

JOMN D. FOLEY

THOMAS P. DOWLING

JOHN A. DIAZ

ROGER S. SMITH

JOSEPH C. REDMOND, JR.1
DAVID A. LOEWENSTEIN
KATHLEEN €. MCCARTHY
HERBERT BLECKER

JOMN D. MORGAN
1893-1939

GEORGE B. FINNEGAN, JR.

1930-1998

HOBART N. DURHAM
1930- 1969

GRANVILLE M. PINE
19239-1994

ALFRED L. HAFFNER, JR.
1958-2000

WARREN H. ROTERT
1980-2000

VIA FACSIMILE
CONFIRMATION BY FIRST CLAS

e’

MoORGAN & FINNEGAN, L.L.P.

A Registered Limited Liabiiity Partnership

345 PARK AVENUE
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10154-0053
(212) 758-4800

FACSIMILE: (212) 751-6849
www.morganfinnegan.com

WASHINGTON OFFICE
1778 EYE STREET, N.W.
SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006-240!
TEL.: (202) 857-7887
FACSIMILE: (202) 887-7929

WRITER'S DIRECT DIAL NUMBER!:

(212) 415-8549

March 13, 2001 /)/\

SCOTT D. GREENRERG
MARY J. MORRY

CINDY M. ZELSON
PETER N. FILL
KENNETH S, WEITZMAN
RICHARD STRAUSSMAN
DOROTHY R. AUTH
DAVID V. ROSSI
GERARD A. HADDAD
RICHARD W. ERWINE
MICHAEL O. CUMMINGS
STEPHEN J. MANETTA
RICHARD W, BORK
KIMBER L. WILBON
JOHN T. MOEHRINGER
MARK J. SCHILDKRAUT
J. STEVEN RUTT*
CHRISTOPHER J. GASPART
SYBIL A. LOMBILLO
MATTHEW BLACKBURN®
JAMES HWA

BRETT M. HUTTON
JUSTIN L. KRIEGER
GARRETH A. SAROSI

WILLIAM SENJAMIN TABLER, I

NOAH M. LEIBOWITZ
TOD M. MELGAR
NARI:N COBURN
AN KHEIT*

:nmo REINMARDT*
PETER ZURA*
KEATS A. QUINALTY*
TINI THOMAS
DAVID M. LA BRUNO*
CHARLES A. RATTNER*

C @PY.:W‘N%:«“
CONFiG2ATION

Henry Estevez, Esq.
Allen, Dyer, Doppelt, Milbrath
& Gilchrist, P.A.
1401 Citrus Center
255 South Orange Avenue
Post Office Box 3791
Orlando, Florida 32802-3791

Re:

KEITH J. McWHAYt
CAROL N. GREEN
GREGORY PERRONE!
ARUN CHANORA
KENNETH P, Waserigwicz®
CHARLES P. GUARINO
ERICKA K. DEWEY
MAUREEN MORAN
MAUREEN MCCABE
PAULA K. WITTMAYER*
THOMAS A. MORRISON*
ROBERT M, POLLARO®
KIMBERLY A. MULLER*
KEVIN C. ECKER

SETH SILVERMAN

SCIENTIFIC ADVISORS
KATHRYN M. BROWN, PH, D
LESLIE A. SERUNIAN, PH, N
DARRYL H. STEENSMA, PH, N
JAMES P. DEMERS, PH. D.
SUNGHO HONG, PH. D,
CARYN DEHORATIUS, PH, N
EVELYN M. KWON, PH. D,

WILLIAM E, SEKYI

RICHARD D. RATCHFORO iR
ANGUS GILL

BRIAN W. BROWN
ANNALISA LEONE

VINCENT . DINAPOL)

RECEIVED

MAR 2 0 2001
A.D.D.M.&G.

Tama Plastic Industries v. M. & A. Karatzis S.A.,

Civ. Action No. 01-2332 NM (CW)

Dear Mr. Estevez:

Enclosed is a courtesy copy of a Summons and Complaint by Tama Plastic Industry -
naming as defendants your client, M. & A. Karatzis S.A., and several of its distributors in the
United States. The complaint was filed by our local counsel in the U.S. District Court for the
Central District of California on Friday, March 9, 2001.

608156_1
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MORGAN & FINNEGAN, L.L.P.

Henry Estevez, Esq.
March 13, 2001
Page 2

Please let us know by the close of business on Friday, March 16, 2001 whether as U.S.
counsel for M. & A. Karatzis S.A., you are willing to accept service of the Summons and
Complaint on behalf of (1) M & A Karatzis S.A; and (2) any or all of the other named
defendants.

Very truly yours,

(adacd

Israel Blum

608156_1
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Michael D. Young, Esq. (Bar No.120787)
William E. Berner, Esq.(Bar No.169175)
Weston, Benshoof, et al

444 South Flower Street, 43rd Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CeNTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CASE NUMBER

rLanNTFES),  ov- _ 01-28392 nmle Wx)

TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY

V.

M. & A. Karatzis S.A., Rolling Hills
Plastics, Inc., Pacon Paper, Inc., and -
Marcus-James Company SUMMONS

DEFENDANTY(S).

TO: THE ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANT(S):

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with this court and serve upon plaintiff's attomey

ORIGINAL

Michael D. Young - , whose address is:
Weston, Benshoof, Rochefort, Rubalcava & MacCuish, LLP -
444 South Flower Street
43rd Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Phone: (213) 623-2322 Fax: (213) 623-0B24
An answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you within 30 days after service of this
summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will be taken
against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT
DATE: March 9, 2001 By 4
Deputy Cler¥/
(SEAL OF THE COURT)

CV-1A (08/97) ‘ SUMMONS - copia
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Michael D. Young, Esg. (Bar No.120787)
William E. Berner, Esq.(Bar No.169175)
Weston, Benshoof, et al

444 South Flower Street, 43rd Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .
CeNTRAL  DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY CASE NUMBER

mantrrs,  ov. _ 012832 iy ()

V.

M. & A. Karatzis S.A., Rolling Hills
Plastics, Inc., Pacon Paper, Inc., and
Marcus-James Company SUMMONS

DEFENDANT(S).

TO: THE ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANT(S):

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with this court and serve upon plaintiff's attomey
Michael D. Young , whose address is:

Weston, Benshoof, Rochefort, Rubalcava & MacCuish, LLP
444 South Flower Street

43rd Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90071 .

Phone: (213) 623-2322 Fax: (213) 623-0824

COPRY

An answer to the complaint which is herewith served uponyou within 30 __ days after service of this
summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by defauit will be taken
against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.

CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT

DATE: Mazrch 9. 2001 By DENISE LAZQ
. Deputy Clerk

(SEAL OF THE CO

CV-1A (08/97) ) SUMMONS . cco-1A .
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WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFURT RUBALCAVA MACCUISH LLP

444 South Flower Street, Furty Third Floot

Lous Angeles, California 90071-2901

(213) 623.2322
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MICHAEL D. YOUNG (State Bar No. 120787)
WILLIAM E. BERNER, JR. (State Bar No. 169175)

2 - WESTON, BENSHOOF, ROCHEFORT,
RUBALCAVA & MacCUISH LLP
3 > 444 South Flower Street, Forty Third Floor
- Los Angeles, California 90071-2901
4~ Telephone: (213) 623-2322
5 Facsimile: (213) 623-0824
* Attorneys for Plaintiff |
6 TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY
7]
8
9 " UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
10 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
11 | TAMA PLASTIC INDUSTRY, ) CaseNo. )] 233 WM (cw@
12 Plaintiff, COMPLAINT FOR:
131 v () PATENT INFRINGEMENT

14 M. & A. KARATZIS S.A., ROLLING

() TRADEMARK

1 HILLS PLASTICS, INC., PACON PAPER, INFRINGEMENT
15 £ INC., and MARCUS-JAMES COMPANY.
. (IIT) FALSE DESIGNATION OF
16 - Defendants. ORIGIN AND UNFAIR
; COMPETITION
1
(IV) TRADEMARK
18 INFRINGEMENT AND UNFAIR
: COMPETITION
19
(V) UNFAIR COMPETITION AND
20 : UNFAIR BUSINESS
= PRACTICES
21
22 Plaintiff, TAMA Plastic Industry ("TAMA"), for its complaint against M. & A

23 - Karatzis, S.A. ("Karatzis"), Rolling Hills Plastics, Inc. ("Rolling Hills Plastics"), Pacon Paper

24  Inc. ("Pacon Paper"), and Marcus-James Company ("Marcus-James"), alleges as follows:
25 ; I |

26 3 /1l

27 1l

28 /I

1520774 COMPLAL
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Lus Angeles, California 90071-2901

WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFORT RUBALCAVA MACCUISH LLP
444 South Flower Street, Forty Third Floar

(213) 623.2322

£

N v’
1 Nature of Action and Jurisdiction
2
3. 1. This is an action for patent infringement, trademark infringement, unfajr

4  competition and other related causes of action under federal, state and common law arising from
5 ' defendants' unauthorized manufacture, sale, offer to sell and/or importation into the United
6 States of knitted thermoplastic netting in violation of TAMA's patent rights, and also arising
7 5 from at least defendant Marcus-James' unauthorized sale of products under TAMA's federally

8 ° registered FLEX-NET mark in violation of TAMA's exclusive rights in that mark. Jurisdiction
9 ofthis Court is based on 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338 (a) and (b) (Acts of Congress relating to
10 patents, trademarks and related actions), Sections 39 and 43(a) of the United States Trademark
11 : Act of 1946, as amended (15 U.S.C. §1121 and 1125(a)), 28 U.S.C. §1331 (Federal Question),
12 28 U.S.C. 1332(a)(1) (Federal Diversity), and 28 U.S.C. §1367 (Supplemental Jurisdiction), as
13 _ well as the principles of pendent jurisdiction. The amount in questfon exceeds $75,000.
14

151 The Parties
i
16 ¢ 2. Plaintiff TAMA is a partnership organized according to the laws of the Statz

17 of Israel and has executive offices in Israel at Kibbutz Mishmar Ha'emek, 19236 Israel.

18 ] 3. Upon information and belief, defendant Karatzis is a corporation organize:
19 - under the laws of Greece with offices in Industrial Area, 71110 Heraklion P.O. Box 1490, Crete.
20 : Greece. Upon information and belief, defendant Karatzis is not registered to do business wiihis

* 21 1 any state and does not have offices in the United States.

22 4. Upon information and belief, defendant Rolling Hills Plastics is
23 ] corporation of the State of California, having a place of business at 3555 Lomita Blvd., Suite B
24 - Torrence, California 90505, within this judicial district. .

25 - 5. Upon information and belief, defendant Pacon Paper is a corporation of k-
26 State of California, having a place of business at 4249 N. Puente Ave., Baldwin Park, Caiiforn:
27 91706, within this judicial district.

.
28 -

352077 COMPLA::
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. 1 6. Upon infomiation and belief, deféndant Marcus-James is a corporation of
2 the State of Missouri having places of business at 1846 Yellow Rock Rd., DeSoto, Missouri
3 63020 and 301 East Main, DeSoto, Missouri 63020, and also is doing business within this
4 _ judicial district. | '

5
6° Venue
7: 7. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b), (c) and
8 : (d) and 1400(b).
9
10 | The T "353 Patent
11 8. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of United States Letters Patent No.

12 5,256,353 ("the "353 patent") entitled "METHOD OF MAKING ELASTIC PLASTIC
13 NETTING MADE OF ORIENTED STRANDS." The *353 patent was duly and lawfully issued
14 by the United States Patent and Trademark Office on October 26, 1993. A copy of £he ‘353
;' patent is annexed as Exhibit A hereto.

16 9. Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 282, the "353 patent is presumed valid.

Las Angeles, Califurnia 90071-2901
(213) 623-2322
—
(¥}

Use Of The FLEX-NET Mark By TAMA
10. Since May 1992, TAMA has continuously and extensively sold and

e o e

WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFORT RUBALCAVA MACCUISH LLP
444 South Flower Street, Forty Third Flour

20 promoted its knitted thermoplastic netting products throughout the United States under the
21 FLEX-NET Mark.

22 11. TAMA has maintained the high quality of its FLEX-NET knitted
23 thermoplastic netting products since May, 1992 and does not permit the use of the FLEX-NET
24 Mark on product which does not meet TAMA's standards. .

25 - 12. Asaresultof TAMA's efforts, the FLEX-NET knitted thermoplastic netting
26 - products are recognized by relevant consumers as designated high quality knitted thermoplastic
27 netting originating exclusively from TAMA.
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13.  TAMA is the owner of the United States Trademark Registration N
1,815,946 for the mark FLEX-NET for "pallet netting.” This registration is valid and subsistin.
and in full force and effect and is prima facie proof of TAMA's exclusive right to own and LS
the FLEX-NET Mark pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1057. This registration also has becom

incontestable pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1065.

Defendants' Infringing Activities
14.  On information and belief, defendant Karatzis has manufactured and/or k=

_ caused to be manufactured outside the United States knitted thermoplastic netting by a methe-

' embodying the invention described and claimed in at least Claim 1 of the ‘353 patent and %=

sold and offered to sell knitted thermoplastic netting made by such method to distributors whes.

activities include sales to consumers located within this judicial district, as well as elsewhere ::

_ the United States, without leave or license from plaintiff.

15. Upon information and belief, defendant Karatzis has been awa;e of th
existence of the ‘353 patent for at least several years. Notwithstanding knowledge of t+
existence of the *353 patent, defendant Karatzis proceeded to infringe and has continued i
infringe at least Claim 1 of the 353 patent by the manufacture outside of the United States ar

* shipment into the United States of knitted thermoplastic netting product(s).

16.  Oninformation and belief, the acts by defendant Karatzis of manufactuiic
the knitted thermoplastic netting outside of the United States by such method and importin_
offering to sell and selling the knitted thermoplastic netting made by such method, to defenda._
Rolling Hills Plastics, Pacon Paper, and/or Marcus-James infringe at least Claim 1 of the '3:
patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(g). The acts by the defendants Rolling Hills Plastics, Pacon Pai-
and Marcus-James in this district and elsewhere in the United States of importing and/or ¢ifes
to sell and/or selling the knitted thermoplastic netting made by Karatzis outside of the Unii-
States by such method also infringe at least Claim 1 of the 353 patentunder 35U.S.C. § 271(:
These infringing acts are without leave or license from plaintiff, and on information and bel:.

are willful and deliberate, with knowledge of the 353 patent.

4

© o 3s20771 CoMPL”



4

WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFORT RUBALCAVA MACCUISH LLP

444 Suuth Fluwer Street, Fusty Thicd Floor

Lous Augeles, Cablormin 900712901

‘Case 6:01-cv-00494-JA Document 4 Filed 05/09/01 Page 46 of 61 PagelD 94

(213) 623.2322

1

N—r N’

17. On information and belief, defendant Rolling Hills has obtained supplies

2 of the knitted thermoplastic netting directly from defendant Karatzis and also from defendant
3 . Marcus-James and possibly others, and has sold and offered to sell such netting to customers
4 - located in this judicial district and elsewhere in the United States.
5 : [8.  On information and belief, defendant Marcus-James has obtained supplies
6 of the knitted thermoplastic nf:tting directly from defendant Karatzis and has sold and offered
7 to sell such netting to customers throughout the United States. Further, on information and
8 1 belief, defendant Marcus-James has contracted with defendant Rolling Hills to fill orders for
9 ' such netting taken by defendant Rolling Hills within this judicial district.
10 i 19.  Oninformation and belief, defendant Pac_on Paperhas purchased quantities
11 of the knitted thermoplastic netting from one or more of the d-efendants herein and has offered
12 to sell used and/or resold such netting within this judicial district.
13 '
14 i Defendant Marcus-James' Improper f The FLEX-NET Mar
15 . 20. Since August 2000, TAMA has not authorized or consented to the use oi
16 - the FLEX-NET Mark by defendant Marcus-James. |
17 21.  Upon information and belief, defendant Marcus-James has sold and/c
18 - offered for sale in this district and elsewhere in the United States a knitted thermoplastic nettin:
19 : product under the FLEX-NET Mark which was not genuine FLEX-NET knitted thermoplasti
20  netting product, in deliberate violation of TAMA's exclusive rights in the FLEX-NET Mark.
21, 22. Upon information and belief, the aforesaid willful and deliberate acts ¢
22 defendantMarcus-James were intended to cause, have caused and are likely to continue to caus
23 ; confus{on ormistake with TAMA's FLEX-NET Mark, and otherwise infringe the prior exclusiv
24 rights of TAMA in the FLEX-NET Mark. In addition, the aforesaid willful and deliberate aci
25 of defendant Marcus-James have caused and will continue to cause, unless enjoined, irreparab
26 damage to TAMA and to the reputation and goodwill of its valuable FLEX-NET Mark.
27
28 /I

i
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1 23. TAMA has been, and will continue to be, absent injunctive relief,
2 irreparably harmed by each and every defendants' aforementioned acts of infringement; and has

3 further suffered monetary damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

4 24. TAMA has no adequate remedy at law.
5 25.  This is an exceptional case.
6 .
7 COUNT I
8" Patent Infringement -
o Under § 271(g) Of The Patent Act
10 26.  TAMA repeats the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 25.
1 27.  Thecomplained ofacts herein constitute willful and deliberate infringement
02 - by defendants, and each of them, of the "353 patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271 (g).
13 :
1 1 COUNT II
Trademark Infringement Under The
15 : United States Trademark Act
6] (15US.C. §1114)
. i - 28. TAMA repeats the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 25.
8 29. The acts of defendant Marcus-James complained of herein consiiiuic
3
91 willful, deliberate and intentional infringement of plaintiff's federally registered FLEX-NE1
I
20 Mark, in violation of §32 of the United States Trademark Act (15 Us.C. §1114).
21] ’
. COUNT III
. False Des ation Of Origin And
231 nfair Competition
: Under The Umted States Trademark Act
24" (15 US.C. § 1125(a))
25 | - 30. TAMA repeats the allegatlons set forth in paragraphs 1 through 25.
26 /I
27
28 1 /11
. 6
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1. 31.  The acts of defendant Marcus-James complained of herein constitute
2 . willful, deliberate and intentional unfair competition and false designations of origin and/or false
3 * representations or descriptions as to the knitted thermoplastic netting product made available by
4 * defendant Marcus-J ames, in violation of §43(a) of the Trademark Act (15 U.S.C. §1125(a)).-
5:

6 i COUNT [V
7. Trademark Infringement and Unfair Competition
1 : Under California Statutory Law and Common Law
8 : (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14335)
91 32. TAMA repeats the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 25.
10 1 33. The acts of defendant Marcus-James complained of herein constitute

11 . willful, deliberate and intentional trademark infringement and unfair competition for the purpose

12 . of enhancing the commercial value of, or selling or soliciting pu;chases of, the goods ot

e

.

13 ° defendant Marcus-James in violation of the California Business and Professional Code § 1433=

14 i and under the common law.

'
151

16 - COUNTV

17 - ' Unfair Competition and Unfair Business Practices

181 (Cal. Bus. & Prof, Code § 17200)

19 ; 34. TAMA repeats the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 25.

20 : 35. The acts of defendant Marcus-James complained of herein constitui
21 } willful, deliberate and intentionally unfair and frandulent business practices in violation of
22 1 17200 of the California Business and Professions Code.

23 |

24 ] PRAYER

25 j WHEREFORE, plaintiff respectfully requests that judgment be entered:

26 '| a) holding that defendants have each infringed the '353 patent un/
27 . 35U.S.C. § 271(g);

28 ,

;352077 compPL*
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1 b)  enjoining defendants and each of them, and all persons and entities
_' in privity with one or all of them, from further acts of infringement, contributory and/or inducing
infringement, of the 353 patent, including importing, offering to sell and selling the knitted

2
3
4 thermoplastic netting made by the method of the 353 patent in the United States, or contributing
5 ~ and/or inducing such importation, offering to sell and selling;

6

7

: c) holding that defendant Marcus-James has infringed and violated
plaintiff's exclusive rights in the FLEX-NET Mark in violation of federal, state and common

8 _ law;
9 d) preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restricting defendant

10 : Marcus-James from directly or indirectly:

11 ()  using, in any manner, or holding itself out as having rights
12 to use the name and mark FLEX-NET or any other name, mark or design confusingly similar
13 to plaintiff's FLEX-NET Mark to designate, describe or refer to any lcnitted thermoplastic netting
14 l product it offers for sﬂe; .

15 (ii)  selling, offering for sale, promoting, advertising, distributing,

3

(213) 623-2322

16 providing or offering to provide any goods in conjunction with the name or mark FLEX-NET
17 I or any other namie, mark or design confusingly similar to plaintiffs FLEX-NET Mark in
18 conjunction with knitted thermoplastic netting products, and all other goods or services

WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFORT RuBALCAVA MAcCuisH LLP
444 South Flower Street, Posty Thicd Floos
Los Angeles, California 90071-2901

19 pertaining to the knitted thermoplastic netting market.

20 e) holding that defendant Marcus-James be required to deliver to
21 i plaintiff all merchandise, packaging, labels, boxes, cartons, advertising, brochures, documents,
22! advertising and promotional materials and other things, possessed, used or distributed by
23 defendant Marcus-James, or on its behalf, which refer to the name or mark FLEX-NET or any
24 other name, mark or design confusingly similar to plaintiffs FLEX-NET Mark, and all
25 i documents which refer or relate to the sale or offering for sale by defendant Marcus-James of
26 knitted thermoplastic netting product under the FLEX-NET Mark;

27

28 /I

L 352077.1 COMPLAINT
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1 - f) awarding plaintiff such monetary damages adequate to compensate

2 plaintiff for defendants' acts of infringement of the '353 patent, including pre-judgement interest
3 ] on these damages;
4 g)  awarding plaintifftreble damages against defendants pursuant to 35
5 : U.S.C. § 284 for willful infringement;
6 1 h)  awarding plaintiff treble damages against defendant Marcus-James
7 * pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1117;
8 i) declaring this case to be "exceptional" and awarding plaintiff its
.9 ‘ reasonable attorneys' fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285, plus the costs and disbursements of this’

10 . action; and

) awarding plaintiff such other and further relief as this Court may

Pt
—
i i | sl el

12 deem just and proper.

13 - DATED: March 9, 2001 Respectfully submitted,

4 MICHAEL D. YOUNG
s WILLIAM E.E%ERNER, JR.

(213) 623-2322

16
17
18
19 -5
20 :
21
2|
23 :
24
25

26 ¢
27 -

Los Angeles, Californis 90071-2901

444 South Flower Steeet, Forty Thied Floor

WESTON BENSHOOF ROCHEFORT RUBALCAVA MACCUISH LLP

28 ;
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(57 ABSTRACT

A method of making an elastic wrapper netting wherein
linear low density polyethylene ribbons are knitted into
a Raschel net. The ribbons of the knitted wrapper net-
ting have an orientation of about 1:4.25 in the longitudi-
nal direction.

6 Claims, 3 Drawing Sheets
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METHOD OF MAKING ELASTIC PLASTIC
NETTING MADE OF ORIENTED STRANDS

This is a divisional application of co-peading applica-
tion Ser. No. 07/444,057 filed Nov. 30, 1989, now U.S.
Pat. No. 5,104,714,

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of the Invention

This invention relates to plastic knitted netting and its
use in wrapping loads on pallets and in wrapping agri-
cultural loads such as cylindrical bales of hay. Further,
this invention relates to a method of making thermo-
plastic ribbons used to knit the netting 50 as to achieve
the surprising result of excellent elasticity, elongation
and residual elasticity.

2. Description of Related Ant

Wrapping pallet loads and agricultural loads with
plastic film and with plastic netting to hold and stabilize
the Joads has become 2 widespread practice. The plastic
netting which has heretofore been used has been either
extruded netting or knitted netting, such as Raschel
netting. Some manufacturers of extruded netting have
discovered that it is desirable to manufacture a netting
having a high degree of stretch before tensile failure and
having a high degree of elasticity. In the past, .users of
netting who have wanted high strength in their netting
have had to use extruded netting. Extruded netting has
had greater strength than knitted netting due to the
much greater amount of material (i.c., greater cross-sec-
tional ares) contained in each strand of netting. With
the recent awareness that extruded petting could also be
made elastic as well as strong, there has been more
interest in the use of extruded netting than in the past.

Knitted plastic netting is made of very thin ribbons of
thermoplastic material in order to allow it to be knitted;
and because of the thinness of the ribbons, knitted net
ting has not been considered as useful as extruded net-
ting for heavy loads where tensile strength is important.
Because of this perception, manufacturers of knitted
netting have always attempted to make their netting as
strong as possible while still using thin ribbons of ther-
moplastic in order to keep cost and weight as Jow as
possible.

Whether one is using extruded netting or knitted
netting, it is desirable 10 have a netting which is both
strong and elastic. Strength is obviously an important
physical characteristic in order to avoid having the
petting break and causing the load to spill. Elasticity in
a netting is a desirable characteristic because it provides

. continued teasion to the Joad after wrapping and after

the load may have experienced settling and a reduction
in volume. A load wrapped by a aetting having insuffi-
cient elasticity will become loose and unstable. Even
with loads which will not settle or reduce in volume, it
is undesirable t0 use a non-elastic netting because tight-
cning the netting sufficiently to hold the load can some-
times damage the contents. Whereas, use of an elastic
netting caa provide sufficient load-holding tension
without damage to the conteats.

Although extruded netting is advantageous to use in
some applications, it has many undesirasble characteris-
tics when compared to knitted netting. One, much less
extruded netting can be wound on the same diameter
spool compared to a spool of knitted netting. This disad-
vantage is important when one realizes how frequently
rolls have 10 be changed on a pallet wrapping machine

13
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or how much storage space is needed to store the neces-
sary inventory of netting. The same amount of knitted
netting of this invention takes one-third the space of
some conventional extruded netting.

Also, extruded netting creates great disposal prob-
lems. Because of the integral joining of the strands in
extruded netting, the structure is very inflexible and is
very difficult, if not impossible, to compact into a small
space; and when it is done, the netting tends to spring
open. The knitted netting of this invention is very easy
to dispose of and can be easily gathered into a small
volume for disposal.

It would be very desirable to combine the benefits of
extruded netting and knitted netting in one netting
product; however, in the past there has never been a
way to combine the features of strength, stretchability
and elasticity in one netting. This has been because the
techniques used 1o strengthen a thermoplastic ribbon
were the very techniques used to make a ribbon inelas-
tic, and the techniques used to make a thermoplastic
ribbon elastic resulted in a weaker ribbon.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

This invention is directed to knitted plastic petting
possessing an elongation (i.e., stretching) of more than
about 60% before breaking, an elastic limit of more than
about 6%, snd will retain at least about 15% of its origi-
nal length when stretiched more than 40%. Further, in.
use, the netting of this invention is preferably stretched
about 30-509% when wrapped around its load. This
invention is particularly directed to a method of creat-
ing such a netting.

It has been discovered that the desired properties of
the knitted netting of this invention is achieved by pro-
ducing a substantially unoriented primary film consist.
ing essentially of a thermoplastic, such as a polyolefin,
slitting the primary film into ribbons, then orienting the
ribbons by an amount to maximize the tensile energy at
break or 10 at least about 80% of such maximum value,
and then knitting' such ribbons into a netting having
longitudinal and lateral ribboas. It has been found that
practicing this invention can optimize the relationship
between the strength, elasticity, and stretchability. In
particular, the preferred knitted netting of this invention
will have an elongation at break of more than about
60%, an elastic limit of more than sbout 6%, and elastic-
ity of more thaa about 15% when elongated more than
0%,

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a force-elongation graph comparing the
clastic limit of a prior art knitted netting not made by
the method of this invention with a knitted netting made
by the preferred embodiment of this invention.

FIG. 2 is a force-clongation graph showing the ten-
sile strain recovery for a knitted netting made by the
preferred embodiment of this inveation after various
amounts of elongation.

FIG. 3 is a graph which compares the force-clonga-
tion characteristics of a prior art knitted netting with a
knitted netting made according to this invention.

FIG. 4A is a graph which illustrates the residual
tensile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted
netting of this invention afier 20% elongation up to0 11
minutes, '

FIG. 4B is a graph which illustrates the residual ten.
sile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted net-
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ting of this invention afier 40% elongation up 10 11
minutes.

F1G. 5 contains a graph which shows the residual
tensile tension characteristics of the preferred knitted
netting of this invention up to 264 hours.

FI1G. 6 shows a sample of the preferred netting of this
invention.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE

INVENTION AND BEST MODE 10

In the preferred mode of this invention, the primary
thermoplastic film is made by a conventional blown-
film technique utilizing small thermoplastic pellets. Al
though, other methods of making the primary film can

be used, such as the chill roll slot cast extrusion method 13

or the water-quenched slot cast extrusion method, the
blown film method is preferred. The netting may be
formed of any thermoplastic material ‘which can be
formed into knittable ribbons. The thermoplastic mate-

rial may be single polyolefin or a blend of polyoclefins. 0

The presently preferred material is linear low density
polyethylene (LLDPE) which has been copolymerized
with the alpha olefin, octene, and having a specific
weight of about 0.92 g/cc. 28
It is well-known that when making primary film,
increased orientation is achieved by pulling the end of
the film out faster than it enters, wherein the ratio of the
output velocity to the input velocity is the orientation

value. It has been discovered that the desirable netting .,

of this invention is obtained by using primary film that
i3 substantially unoriented in any direction. Particularly,
the film should have an orientation in the Jateral direc-
tion of sbout 1.0, and an orientation in the jongitudinal
direction of between sbout 1.0-1.2. The preferable 4
method of producing a primary film which is substan-
tially unoriented in both directions is by producing the
film with a blow-up ratio of 1:1 to 1:1.2. It is preferred
that the thickness of the primary film which is used to
make the longitudinal ribbons to be knitted into the
netting be between about 0.08 mm 1o 0.10 mm, and
prefersbly about 0.09 mm; and that the primary film
which is 10 be vsed to make the lateral ribbons have a
thickness of between about 0.04 mm and 0.06 mm, and
preferrably about 0.05 mm. 45
After the primary film is made, it is then passed to a -
machine for slitting the film into ribbons. The ribbons
which are 1o be used as the longitudinal ribbons in the
knitted npetting, as well as the ribbons which are to be

used as the lateral ribbons in the knitted netting are sp

preferably slit into the same width of between about 2.4
mm and 2.6 mm and preferably about 2.5 mm. After the
slitting process the ribbons are then siretched and ori-
ented in the longitudinal direction to s valus of between
about 14 snd 1:5, and preferrably about 1:4.25. This 33
orieatation produces a Jongitudinal ribbon having a
thickness of between about 0.0¢ mm and 0.05 mm, and
preferrably sbout 0.044 mm, and a lateral ribbon having
a thickness of between about 0.02 mm and 0.03 mm, and

preferrably about 0.024 mm. After orienation, both the 60

longitudinal and the lateral ribbons have a width of
between 1.2 mm and 1.3 mm, and preferrably about 1.23
mm. The denier of the preferred longitudinal ribbons is
between about 430 and 460, and preferrably about 448,

and ‘the denier of the preferred lateral ribbons is be- 65

tween 240 and 250, and preferrably about 244. The
denier of a ribbon is a unit of weight and is defined as
the weight in grams of 9000 meters of the ribbon. The

4
next step in the process is to oil the ribbons and 10 knit
them using a Raschel machine into a knitted netting.
It has been determined that by using a primary film
which was substantially unoriented durirg its manufac-

3 ture and by properly orienting the ribbons after cutting

the film into ribbons, the desired characteristics for
elongation at break, elastic limit, and elasticity can be
achieved. The deésired properties are achieved by hav-
ing a high “tensile energy to break™ value, preferrably
more than 30% of the maximum possible value, and
more preferrably maximizing the “tensile energy to
break™ (TEB). The TEB is defined in ASTM D 882-83
a3 the area under the stress-strain curve to the break
point. However, because netting having an elongation
at break value of more than 130% are generally of no
commercial value, it is preferred to measure and maxi-
mize the TEB up to 130% elongation. If netting having
a greater elongation st break is commercially useful, for
example, 150% or more, then the TED should be mes-
sured and maximized up to this greater value.

Although it has been determined that in the preferred
embodiment using the preferred thermoplastic material,
the preferred ribbon orientation is about 1:4.25, when
other materials are used, the proper ribbon orientation
will need to be determined by preparing stress-strain
curves for the netting made from the material at various
ribbon orientations and then determining which orienta-
tion maximizes the TEB value. This ribbon orientation
will provide a knitted netting having the most desired
balance of strength (i.e., stress at break), elongation at
break, elastic limit, stretchability (ie., strain at break),
and elasticity. Although it is preferrable to select this
proper orientation for both the longitudinal and lateral
ribbons, the invention could be practiced by orienting
only the longitudinal ribbons pursuant to this invention
and orienting the lateral ribbons by any of the prior art |
methods not in accordance with this invention. This
new netting has been compared to a prior art netting
which is made from high density polyethylene. This
comparison is best seen in Table [ on the following page
and in FIGS. 1-3. .

TABLE 1

LONGITUDINAL LONGITUDINAL
RIBBONS OF RIBBONS
PRIOR ART OF NEW
NETTING ____ NETTING

Ratio Of Tape 172 1:4.28

Orientation

Width Of Tepe Prior  5.00 M.M. 25 M.M.

To Orientation :

Width Of Tape Aher  1.89 M.M. 1.23 MM

Origntation

Thiciness Of Tape 0.090 MM 0.09 MM,

Prior To Orieatation

Thickness Of Tape 0.030 M.M. 0.044 M.M.

Afier Orientation

Denier Of Tape Aher 4833 DEN. 443 DEN.
LATERAL RIB-  LATERAL RIB-.
BONS OF PRIOR  BONS OF NEW
ART NETTING _ NETTING

Ratio Of Tape 1:64 1:4.25

Orientation

Width Of Tape Prior  2.54 M.M. 3 MM:

To Oriexwion

Width Of Tape Afer  0.97 M.M. LI MM,

Orlemation .

Thickness Of Tape 0.07T M.M. 0.05 M.M.

Prioc To Orientstion

Thickness Of Tape 0.027 MM. 0.024 M.M.

After Orientation

Denier Of Tape After 223 DEN. 244 DEN
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TABLE l-continued
Orieniat
MATERIAL EDPE___ Lore -
Specific Weigit 0.947 GR/CC 092 GR/C
Weight Per Squere 10 GR/M? 10 GR/M? L]
Square Muver Of
Neuing
Recommended Elcn- 3-4% 30-350%
Under
Normal Palletizing
Conditions 10
Elsstic Lim#t % 10%
Elasticity (5.7 30%

F1Q. 1 represents the relationship between the elon.
gation of the respective netting and the applied load. the 15
upper portion of the curves represents elongation as the
load is increased, and the bottom portion represents the
elongation as the load is released. It is seen that the new
netting material is more elastic than the old netting,
both in the sense of being more easily elongated and in 20
having a higher elastic limit. The elastic limit is defined
as that percentage of elongation experienced by the
ribbon after which the ribbon can return to its original
leagth. If the ribbon is stretched beyoud the elastic
limit, the ribbon undergoes irreversible deformation, 25
meaning that when the load is released, the ribbon does
not return to its original length.

Referring now to FIG. 3, this graph bears the impor-
1ant force—elongation curves for the new netting and
the prior ast netting. It is seen that the prior art netting 30
is not nearly as streichable as the new netting. It is seen
that the new netting can undergo elongation of 130% of
its original length, whereas the prior art netting can
only undergo clongation of about 15%. It can be visual-
ized by looking at the two curves in FIG. 3 that the 33
tensile energy at break (TEB) for the new netting is
much greater than that for the prior art netting. Calcu-
Iating the TED for each netting results in the new net-
ting having a TEB value of about 58.75. Mjoules/m?
(mega joules per cubic meter) , while the TEB value of 40
the pricr art netting is about 26.11 Mjoules/M3.

Another benefit of the new netting can be seen by
viewing FIG. 2, which shows the hysteresis of the new
netting afier undergoing elongation of 20%, 60%, and
100%. It is seen that afier 20% elongation, the netting 435
nearly returns to its original length, whereas, after elon-
gations of 60% and 10095, the netting returns to 30%
elongation and 70% clongation, respectively based on
its original length. This characteristic of the new netting
provides residual stress and continued tension on s load 30
regardless of how much the netting is Stretched during
the wrapping process.
Turming now to FIG. 4 the residual teansile tension
for the new netting after elongations of 209 and 40% is
plotied versus time, and it is apparent that the new 38
netting maintaing its tension for s lang time, as shown in
FIG.8 ’ '

EXAMPLE .

Thermoplastic pellets cousisting essentially of linear 60
Jow density polyethylene (LLDPE) are extruded by the
blow-film method im0 one primary film having a thick-
ness of about 0.9 mm. This film will be used to make the
longitudinal ribbons. The same lastic is ex-
truded into a film having a thickness of about 0.05 mm 65
10 be used to make the lateral ribbons. The LLDPE is
made by Dow Chemical Company and is sold under the
name DOWLEX 2045 E (Genera! Purposes) . The film
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is produced under conditions such that it undergoes no
orientation in either the longitudinal ar lateral direction.

Once the primary film is made, it is fed into a5 1.8.0.
machine for slitting into ribbons and stre.ching in order
to phr:i:ndu?e the properly :nexnted ribbons. The LS.0..
machine is manufactured by .S.0., a company located
at Roaenfeld. West Germany. The film forioth the
longitudinal ribbons and the lateral ribbons are fed into
the 1.5.0. machine at a temperature of 100-110 degrees
C. The longitudinal ribbons are first slit to a width of 2.5
mm and then oriented to a value of 1:4.25. The width
and thickness of the longitudinal ribbons after orienta-
tiop are 1.23 mm and 0.044 mm, respectively. The lat-
eral ribbons are first slit to & width of 2.54 mm and then
oriented to a valve of 1:4.25. The width and thickness of
the lateral ribbons after orientation are 1.23 mim and
0.024 mm, respectively.

The denier of the longitudinal ribboe prior to orienta-
tion is 1900, and after orientation of 1:4.25 is 443. The
denier of the lateral ribbon prior to orientation is 1040
and after orientation of 1:4.25 is 244. The longitudinal
ribbons and the lateral ribbons are then placed on their
respective grooves for knitting on the Raschel knitting
machines. The Raschel knitting machine then produces
8 knitted netting which is rolled up onto a spool for
future use. The netting has a width of up to 500 cm and
the weight of the netting is sbout 10 grams/square me-
ter.

* The completed netting is shown in F1G. 6 wherein a
section of netting 1 is comprised of longitudinal ribbons
2 and lateral ribbons 3.

This netting stretches 1309% when stretched at the
rate of 100% per minute before breaking, has an elastic
limit of 10%, and has a tensile strain recovery of 30%
after elongation of between 40% to 130%. A 50 om
width of this netting will break at 40 Kg. :

This knitted netting is utilized with a conventional
pallet wrapping machine and the load is wrapped by
stretching the netting around the load 30 that it elon.
gates 209%-40% and is wrapped in a spinal or parallel
fashion by a wrapping machine intended for this pur-
pose or by hand. Because of the characteristics of this
netting, round bales of hay can be wrapped by only one
and one-third circumferences around the load.

Although the invention has been described in its pre-
ferred embodiment, it will be apparent 10 those skilled
in the art that the procedures and techniques of this
invention can be applied to other materials to achieve
the desired results of this invention. Accordingly, the
scope of this invention is defined by the scope of the
following claims.

What is claimed fs:

1. A method of making a knitted thermoplastic aet-
ting having longitodinal ribbons and lateral ribbons,
comprising the steps of: _

producing s substantially unoriented primary film

e?ndsdngmﬁnnyoﬂinmlowdusitypolyeth-
yiene; :

slitting the substantially unoriented primary film into

longitudinal ribbons;

orienting by stretching the longitudinal ribbons to

have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantially unoriented length of about 1:4 to 1:5;
and

knitting said oriented longitudinal ribbons and the
lateral ribbons into a knitted net;

wherein said knitted net has an elastic limit of more
than about 6%, an clongation at break of more than
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about 60%, and an elasticity of more than about
159% when stretched more than 40%.

2. The method sccording to claim 1, further compris-
ing of the step of orienting by stretching the longitudi-
ndn’bbouwprodnaawnﬁlemergynbrukm
of about 80% of the maximum TEB possible for said
ribbons measured up 1o an elongation of 130%.

3. The method sccording to claim 1, further compris-
ing the steps of: .

orienting by stretching said longitudinal ribbons to &

width of between sbout 1.2 mm snd 1.3 mm, 2
thickness of between about 0.04 mm and 0.05 mm,
and a denier of between about 430 and 460; and

orienting by stretching the lateral ribbons to have a

width of between about 1.2 mm and 1.3 mm, &

335

45

55

8
thickness of between sbout 0.2 mm and 0.03 mm,
and a denier of between about 240 and 250.

4. The method according to claim 3, further compris-
ing the step of orientating said longitudinal ribbons to a
ratio of about 1:4.25.

S. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing the step of orienting by stretching the latersl ribbons
to have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantially unoriented length in excess of 1:4.

6. The method according to claim 1, further compris-
ing the step of orienting by stretching the lateral ribbons
to have a ratio of stretched oriented length to original
substantially unoriented length of about 1:4 to 1:S.

* o ¢ & [ ]



Case-6:01-cv-00494-JA—D ocurent-4—Krilod-06/08/0+—Rage-59 of 61-Ragelb-107

p—
UNTITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION
PATENT NO. : 5,256,353
DATED - October 26, 1993

INVENTOR(S) :  yyval Leiber, Ya'Acov Agayof and Yonatan Arnon

it is certified that error appears in the above—identified patent and that said Letters Patent
is hereby comected as shown below:

On the title page, Item [75]: )
Under "Inventors", "Megido" should be --Galed--,

and "Haemek" should be
~-~Misnmar Haemek--. Column 4, line 49 and 62, under
the headings "Longitudinal Ribbons of New Netting" and
"Lateral Ribbons of New Nectting", respectively, the
dimension "2.5 M.M." should be ~--2.54 M.M.--. Column 5§,
line 3, the column title "EDPE"™ should be --HDPE--;
Column 5, line 4, the specific gravity "0.92 GR/C"
should be -~0.92 GR/CC--; Column S5, lines 5 through 7,
the legend "Weight per Square Square Meter of Netting"
should be --Weight Per Square Meter of Netting--.

Signed and Sealed this
Sixteenth Day of August, 1994
BRUCE LEEMAN

Artesting Officer Commissioner of Patents end Tradamarks
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PRESS RELEASE

Tema Plastic industry todzy announced thet it hes brought 2 lawsuit ig the United
SumDﬁﬁctCm:nwml’b&rmhﬁbmWammbwof
compenies. Tama is the ownerofa US. mmnnuhﬂuadmm
Tamn’s highly successiul FLEX-NET* knitted thermoplastic netting producs. The FLEX- .
NET* praduct is used as paliet wrap or fruits and vegetables, as well as in gther

Beations. | |

Among the corapanies that have been sued fbr paters infringement is M&A
Karazzis S.A., s Gresk company Who is the manufdcturer 6 the producy which 1 being
aceussd. Otbexr vormpanies being sued include scveral distributors, iowporess and
customens of Karszis. including Rolling Hills Plastics, Inc. of Tormance. Califorma.
Mm)mCm&DémMmmdePw Inc. of Baldwin Park,
California,

ts addition to the charges of pazent infringement hrought against all of the
compunies. Tama has also accused Mancus-James of trademark infrinyarnest and of
stempting to pess off the Ksratzis' manufachyred netting &3 genuine FLEX-NET ™
netting.

Tarma’s lswsuit sesks damages and ijunctive relief sguinst alt of the accizsed
infongers. Tana has deciared that it imends w0 fullv enjorce &il of s patent snd
trademark nghts against anyone clse that is found to be infringing. For further
niormetson on the avaitability of Tame's FLEX-NET* product, piease contact,

TemaNet (USA) Inc.

2555 E. Chapmamn Ave.

Fullerton, CA 9285 (

Mr. Ersnt Mamon: +714) 44} 0834

Mr. Todd Palmer. +{770) 64S 7904

Dated: March 12, 200)



